

Subd. 4. The sum of \$10,000 is appropriated from the general fund to the commissioner of public welfare for the purposes of section 7 to be available until June 30, 1981.

Sec. 9. TEMPORARY PROVISION. The commissioner of corrections shall amend 11 MCAR Section 2.111 (G)(1.) by striking the word "Health" and insert the word "Corrections."

Notwithstanding sections 15.0411 to 15.052, the amendment shall be effective on the day following its publication in the State Register.

Sec. 10. EFFECTIVE DATE. This act is effective the day following its final enactment. Sections 3, 4, 5 and 6 shall expire June 30, 1981 and section 7 shall expire June 30, 1983.

Approved April 15, 1980

#### CHAPTER 571—H.F.No. 1818

*An act relating to game and fish; excluding bears from the definition of fur bearing animals; providing that a portion of deer license fees shall be used for the purpose of deer habitat improvement; requiring licenses of persons providing guide services for bear hunters; specifying fees; requiring tagging of bears taken in the state; removing certain restrictions on the trapping of beaver; providing for free fishing licenses for certain mentally retarded and disabled residents; authorizing moose seasons at the discretion of the commissioner; granting landowners preference for moose licenses; extending the muskrat trapping season; changing the times of day during which certain wild animals may be taken; regulating bear baiting; allowing sale of bear hides and claws; altering the end date of certain fishing seasons; amending Minnesota Statutes 1978, Sections 97.40, Subdivision 7; 97.49, by adding a subdivision; 98.46, Subdivisions 4, 16 and 22; 98.47, Subdivisions 7, 15 and 16; 100.27, Subdivision 2; 100.29, Subdivisions 1 and 31; 100.30; 101.41, Subdivision 2; Minnesota Statutes, 1979 Supplement, Sections 100.27, Subdivision 4; and 100.271, Subdivision 1.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 97.40, Subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. "Fur bearing animals" includes all protected mammals, except bear, deer, moose, elk and caribou.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 97.49, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 1a. (a) For purposes of this subdivision, "deer license" means a license issued by the commissioner under the provisions of section 98.46, subdivision 2, clauses (2) and (3) and subdivision 14, clauses (2) and (3).

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

(b) It is the policy of this state that at least \$1 from each deer license issued by the commissioner shall be used for the purpose of deer habitat improvement.

Sec. 3. [98.455] BEAR HUNTING GUIDE LICENSE. No person shall for compensation engage in the business or occupation of placing bait for bear or guiding hunters in seeking to take bear without an annual license from the commissioner. The commissioner shall promulgate rules governing qualifications for, issuance and administration of licenses required by this section. No license shall be issued under this section after the day prior to the opening of the season for taking bear by firearms, and all license agents shall return all stubs and unsold license blanks to the county auditor at a time and in a manner to be determined by the commissioner.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 98.46, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. Fees for the following licenses, to be issued to residents only, shall be:

(1) To trap fur bearing animals, except beaver, \$5;

(2) To buy or sell raw furs anywhere within the state including the privilege of selling to resident manufacturers or to unlicensed non-residents, representing unlicensed non-residents as a broker or agent, or conducting a fur auction wherein sales are made to unlicensed non-residents or resident manufacturers, \$50, provided that any employee, partner or officer buying or selling at the established place of business only for such licensee may secure a supplemental license for \$20;

(3) To trap beaver during an open season or by permit when doing damage, \$2.50;

(4) To guide bear hunters, \$50.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 98.46, Subdivision 16, is amended to read:

Subd. 16. ~~Fee~~ Fees for the following ~~license~~ licenses, to be issued to non-residents, shall be:

To buy or sell raw furs, \$400, except that a license shall not be required to buy from those licensed under subdivision 4, clause (2).

To guide bear hunters, \$400.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 98.46, Subdivision 22, is amended to read:

Subd. 22. No deer ~~or~~, moose, or bear taken in this state shall be transported or possessed unless a tag of a type prescribed by the commissioner bearing the license number of the owner, the year of its issue, and such other information as the commissioner may require has been affixed to its carcass in a manner

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

prescribed by the commissioner. The tag must be so affixed at the time the deer ~~or~~, moose, or bear is brought into any hunting camp, dwelling, farm yard, or other place of abode of any kind occupied overnight, or before being placed wholly or partially on a motor vehicle of any kind, or upon a conveyance towed by a motor vehicle of any kind. Provided, that deer taken by bow and arrow and moose shall be tagged by a conservation officer or other authorized agent as may be prescribed by the commissioner, in addition to the tag herein provided for.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 98.47, Subdivision 7, is amended to read:

Subd. 7. ~~No license to trap beaver shall be issued to any person to whom a fur buyer's license shall have been issued and in force;~~ and No license to take fish commercially in international waters extending from Pigeon Point West to the North Dakota boundary line shall be issued to any person or member of his household, or employee, engaged in the business of conducting a summer resort.

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 98.47, Subdivision 15, is amended to read:

Subd. 15. A permanent license to take fish shall be issued at the prevailing fee for an individual resident license without charge to any citizen of Minnesota, 16 years of age or older, who is mentally retarded and whose parent or guardian furnishes satisfactory evidence of the disability to the county auditor or a subagent of the county auditor, acting under the provisions of section 98.50.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 98.47, Subdivision 16, is amended to read:

Subd. 16. A permanent license to take fish shall be issued at the prevailing fee for an individual resident license without charge to any Minnesota veteran as defined in section 197.447, who has a 100 percent service connected disability as defined by the United States veterans administration, and furnishes satisfactory evidence of his disability to the county auditor or a subagent of the county auditor, acting under the provisions of section 98.50.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 100.27, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. Deer, moose and bear may be taken in such areas of the state, under such restrictions and on such dates within the periods hereafter prescribed as the commissioner may, by order, provide:

(1) Deer and bear by bow and arrow; legal muzzle loading firearms as defined in section 100.29, subdivision 3, clause (2), or both, between September 1 and December 31 and in any areas of the state designated by the commissioner. Legal muzzle loading firearms shall be permitted by the commissioner on public lands only;

(2) Deer, by legal firearms and with bow and arrow, between November 1 and December 15, with the length of the season to be determined by the commissioner; and

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

(3) Moose, between January 1 and December 31 ~~in any of the calendar years 1976 through 1979~~ as determined by the commissioner, by legal firearms and with bow and arrow, in areas of the state, and under such restrictions and on such dates as the commissioner may by order provide; for purposes of this section a split season in any one calendar year shall be considered as one season.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes, 1979 Supplement, Section 100.27, Subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. Muskrats may be taken for a period not exceeding ~~60~~ 90 days in the aggregate for the area, otter for a period not exceeding 15 days, only by trapping, and mink for a period not exceeding 90 days, in the areas of the state, during the times between October 25th and April 30th of the following year and subject to any other restrictions which the commissioner shall prescribe. Beaver may be taken, by trapping only, in the areas of the state, during the times between October 25th and April 30th of the following year and subject to any other restrictions which the commissioner shall prescribe.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes, 1979 Supplement, Section 100.271, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

**100.271 MOOSE OR TURKEY; LICENSES.** Subdivision 1. At the time of issuing the order setting the dates of a moose or turkey season, the commissioner shall include in the same order the number of licenses to be issued for that season. Those eligible to receive a license shall be determined by the commissioner according to the provisions of this section and such rules as the commissioner may provide. The commissioner may, if he deems it advisable, conduct a separate selection for not to exceed 20 percent of the licenses to be issued for any one area, for which selection the only eligible applicants for turkey licenses will be persons who live as owners or tenants on 40 acres or more of agricultural or grazing land within the prescribed area, and the only eligible applicants for moose licenses shall be persons who are owners of or live as tenants on not less than 160 acres of agricultural or grazing land within the prescribed area. Landowners or tenants who are unsuccessful in ~~this these~~ separate selection selections shall be included in the ~~selection selections~~ for the remaining licenses.

Any landowner or tenant who is successful in the commissioner's separate selection shall permit turkey hunting on his land during the turkey season.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 100.29, Subdivision 1, is amended to read:

**100.29 RESTRICTIONS AND PROHIBITIONS.** Subdivision 1. It shall be unlawful to take protected wild animals, except raccoon and fox, with the use of a gun or bow and arrows between ~~sunset and one-half hour before sunrise~~ the evening and morning times established by the commissioner by order. It shall be unlawful to take pheasants between ~~sunset~~ the evening time established by the commissioner by order and 9 a.m.

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 101.41, Subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

Subd. 2. Except as otherwise provided, the following fish may be taken only by angling with a single line except that not more than two lines and two baits may be used to take fish through the ice, transported and possessed, subject to all other provisions of chapters 97 to 102, between the dates set opposite each species:

Species

Large and small mouthed black bass

Dates — May 15th and ~~Feb. 15th~~ the third Monday in February

Trout

Dates — As the commissioner may by order prescribe between Jan. 1st and Oct. 31st

Lake trout (land-locked salmon)

Dates — Jan. 1st and Oct. 31st

Wall-eyed pike

Dates — May 15th and ~~Feb. 15th~~ the third Monday in February

Sauger (sand pike)

Dates — May 15th and ~~Feb. 15th~~ the third Monday in February

Great Northern pike and pickerel

Dates — May 15th and ~~Feb. 15th~~ the third Monday in February

Muskellunge

Dates — May 15th and ~~Feb. 15th~~ the third Monday in February

Rock bass and white bass

Dates — No closed season

Crappies

Dates — No closed season

Sunfish and blue gill

Dates — No closed season

Catfish

Dates — No closed season

Bullheads

Dates — No closed season

Carp, dogfish, redhorse, sheepshead, suckers, eelpout, garfish, perch, whitefish, tullibeas, buffalofish

Dates — No closed season.

Sec. 15. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 100.29, Subdivision 31, is amended to read:

Subd. 31. Any person placing bait for bear shall display a tag as prescribed by the commissioner at each site where bait is placed and register the location of the bait in a manner prescribed by the commissioner. It shall be unlawful to take bear by using solid waste containing bottles, cans, plastic, paper, metal or any

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~

other materials that are not readily biodegradable as a bait or a lure for the purpose of attracting the bear.

Sec. 16. Minnesota Statutes 1978, Section 100.30, is amended to read:

**100.30 POSSESSION, SALE, TRANSPORTATION.** The skins of all fur bearing animals, the hides of bear, deer or moose, the claws of bear, and the flesh of beaver, muskrat, raccoon, rabbits and hares, legally taken and bearing such seals or tags as may be required by chapters 97 to 102, may be bought, sold, and transported at any time, provided the flesh of animals enumerated herein, except muskrats, shall not be transported outside of the state of Minnesota.

Sec. 17. **EFFECTIVE DATE.** Sections 8, 9, and 11 are effective for the license seasons beginning March 1, 1981.

Approved April 15, 1980

---

#### CHAPTER 572—H.F.No. 1662

*An act relating to state government; providing for a demonstration job-sharing project in state government; appropriating money.*

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. **[43.56] PURPOSE.** The purpose of sections 1 to 7 is to increase career opportunities in the Minnesota state service through job-sharing.

Sec. 2. **[43.57] DEFINITIONS.** For the purposes of sections 1 to 7 the following terms have the meanings given them:

(a) "Agency" means a department, agency, commission, board, institution, or other entity in the executive branch in which all positions are under the same appointing authority.

(b) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of personnel.

(c) "Coordinator" means the coordinator of the Minnesota demonstration job-sharing program.

(d) "Shared position" means a classified position which has been converted from a full-time position into part-time positions of equivalent class for purposes of sections 1 to 7.

(e) "Program" means the Minnesota demonstration job-sharing program.

(f) "Appropriate shared-time percent" means the percent of full-time hours allocated to a particular shared-time position.

Sec. 3. **[43.58] POSITIONS AFFECTED.** A total of 50 full-time positions within agencies of state government shall be selected for inclusion within the

Changes or additions indicated by underline deletions by ~~strikeout~~